
Minturn Town Council  
March 18, 2020 

Page 1 of 3 

AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE MINTURN TOWN COUNCIL 

Minturn Town Center, 302 Pine Street 

Minturn, CO 81645 • (970) 827-5645 

Wednesday March 18, 2020 

Work Session – 5:30pm  

Regular Session – 6:30pm 

When addressing the Council, please state your name and your address for the record prior to providing your 

comments. Please address the Council as a whole through the Mayor. All supporting documents are available for 

public review in the Town Offices – located at 302 Pine Street, Minturn CO 81645 – during regular business hours 

between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. 

Work Session – 5:30pm 

• Discussion of proposed Ordinance 05 – Series 2020 An Ordinance of the Town of Minturn 
enacting a moratorium on the allocation of water taps for new build construction projects 
requiring more than three Single Family Equivalents – Metteer  pg 62

Regular Session – 6:30pm 
1. Call to Order

• Roll Call

• Pledge of Allegiance

2. Public comments on items which are ON the consent agenda or are otherwise NOT on

the agenda as a public hearing or action item. (5-minute time limit per person)

MAYOR – John Widerman

MAYOR PRO TEM – Earle Bidez 

COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Terry Armistead 

George Brodin 

Brian Eggleton 

Eric Gotthelf 

Chelsea Winters  

1



Minturn Town Council  
March 18, 2020 

Page 2 of 3 

3. Approval of Consent Agenda

A Consent Agenda is contained in this meeting agenda. The consent agenda is designed to assist 

making the meeting more efficient. Items left on the Consent Agenda may not be discussed when 

the Consent Agenda comes before the Council. If any Council member wishes to discuss a Consent 

Agenda item please tell me now and I will remove the item from the Consent Agenda and place it 

in an appropriate place on the meeting agenda so it can be discussed when that item is taken up 

by the Board. Do any Council members request removal of a Consent Agenda item? 

• March 4, 2020 Minutes pg 4
• Resolution 09 – 2020 a Resolution expressing support for ECO Transits FY2020

FTA 5339(b) buses and bus facilities grant program to acquire tow (2) new 40’

transit buses   pg 12
• Resolution 10 – 2020 a Resolution approving the purchase of a water distribution

leak detection system.   pg 15

4. Approval of Agenda

• Items to be Pulled or Added

• Declaration of Conflicts of Interest

5. Special Presentations

• Avon to Gilman Transmission Line Public Scoping Process update – Adam

Bianchi, Deputy District Ranger, White River National Forest, USDA

• Council Comments/Committee Reports

6. Public Hearing/Action Item: Resolution 11 – Series 2020 A Resolution appointing a 
municipal judge – Metteer   pg 18

7. Public Hearing/Action Item: Ordinance No. 03 – Series 2020 (First Reading) an 
Ordinance amending sections of the Minturn Municipal Code pertaining to the 
“Mountaintop area” – Metteer   pg 38

8. Public Hearing/Action Item: Ordinance No. 04 – Series 2020 (First Reading) An 
Ordinance Amending Chapter 8 of the Minturn Municipal Code to Adopt the 2020 Model 
Traffic Code for Colorado with Local Amendments – Peterson-Cremer   pg 62

9. Public Hearing/Action Item: Resolution 12 – Series 2020 A Resolution approving an 
Electronic Participation Policy at Town Council meetings during a local disaster 
emergency – Peterson-Cremer   pg 69

10. Public Hearing/Action item: Resolution 13 – Series 2020 A Resolution Approving 
Suporting the Governor’s Declaration of Emergency – Peterson-Cremer   pg 76

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND/OR ACTION ITEMS 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

2



Minturn Town Council  
March 18, 2020 

Page 3 of 3 

11. Public Hearing/Action Item: Ordinance 05 – Series 2020 An Ordinance of the Town of

Minturn enacting a moratorium on the allocation of water taps for new build construction 
projects requiring more than three Single Family Equivalents – Metteer   pg 78

12. Staff Updates

• Manager’s Report

• Future Agenda Items   pg 83

13. Executive Session: An Executive Session for the purpose of conferencing with the Town

Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on a specific legal question under CRS

Section 24-6-402(4)(b) – Bolts Lake and Water Issues – Winokur/Metteer

14. Future Meeting Dates

a) Council Meetings:

• March 18, 2020

• April 1, 2020

• April 15, 2020

15. Other Dates:

• Candidate Forum – March 19, 2020

• Municipal Election – April 7, 2020

16. Adjournment

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 

COUNCIL INFORMATION / UPDATES 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

3



Minturn Town Council  
March 4, 2020 

Page 1 of 8 

 

 

 

  

OFFICIAL MINUTES 
 

MEETING OF THE MINTURN TOWN COUNCIL 

Minturn Town Center, 302 Pine Street 

Minturn, CO 81645 • (970) 827-5645 

 

Wednesday March 4, 2020 
 

Executive Session – 5:30pm  

Regular Session – 6:30pm  
  

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
These minutes are formally submitted to the Town of Minturn Town Council for approval as the official written 

record of the proceedings at the identified Council Meeting.  Additionally, all Council meetings are tape-recorded 

and are available to the public for listening at the Town Center Offices from 8:30am – 2:00 pm, Monday through 

Friday, by contacting the Town Clerk at 970/827-5645 302 Pine St. Minturn, CO 81645. 

 

The Minturn Town Council will open the Regular Meeting at 5:30pm for the purpose of 

convening into Executive Session. At (approximately) 6:30pm the Council will convene into 

Regular Session for the remainder of the meeting. 

 

Executive Session – 5:30pm 

 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor John W. at 5:30pm and convened in the upstairs 

Conference Room. 

 

Those present include: Mayor John Widerman, Mayor Pro Tem Earle Bidez and Town Council 

members George Brodin, Brian Eggleton, Terry Armistead, and Eric Gotthelf. Note Chelsea W. 

was excused absent. 

 

Staff present: Town Manager Michelle Metteer, Town Attorney Michael Sawyer, and Town 

Water Attorney Meghan Winokur. 

 

 

MAYOR – John Widerman             
MAYOR PRO TEM – Earle Bidez 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

Terry Armistead 

George Brodin 

Brian Eggleton 

Eric Gotthelf 

Chelsea Winters  

4



Minturn Town Council  
March 4, 2020 

Page 2 of 8 

 

1. Executive Session: An Executive Session for the purpose of conferencing with the 

Town Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on a specific legal question 

under CRS Section 24-6-402(4)(b) – Water Issues – Metteer 

 
Motion by Terry A., second by George B., to convene in Executive Session for the purposes of 

conferencing with the Town attorney(s) for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal 

questions under CRS Section 24-6-402(4)(b).  Water Issues; as presented. Motion passed 6-0. Note 

Chelsea W. was excused absent. 

 

The Council met in the Conference room for the Executive Session. At 6:28pm the Council 

adjourned the Executive session and convened in the Council Room for the public portion of the 

Council meeting.  

 

Regular Session – 6:30pm 
 

2. Call to Order  

• Roll Call 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor John W. at 6:38pm in the Council Chambers. 

 

Those present include: Mayor John Widerman, Mayor Pro Tem Earle Bidez and Town Council 

members George Brodin, Brian Eggleton, Terry Armistead, and Eric Gotthelf. Note Chelsea 

Winters was excused absent. 

 

Staff present: Town Manager Michelle Metteer, Attorney Michael Sawyer, Town Planner Scot 

Hunn, and Town Treasurer/Town Clerk Jay Brunvand. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Public comments on items which are ON the consent agenda or are otherwise NOT 

on the agenda as a public hearing or action item. (5-minute time limit per person)  

 

Mr. Tim McGuire, Battle Mtn, updated on the Bolts Lake area. They have been meeting with 

numerous parties, over 50 individuals. They are listening to gain insight if the project should stay 

in town or continue with the Disconnect process. This process will continue with the goal of 

determination. If things continue as they have, they will be submitting a proposal to move forward 

with the development within Minturn. Brian E. asked who from Battle Mtn has been involved; Mr. 

McGuire and others as available. John W. recommended anyone with questions to contact them.  

 

4. Approval of Consent Agenda 

 

A Consent Agenda is contained in this meeting agenda. The consent agenda is designed to assist 

making the meeting more efficient. Items left on the Consent Agenda may not be discussed when 

the Consent Agenda comes before the Council. If any Council member wishes to discuss a Consent 

Agenda item please tell me now and I will remove the item from the Consent Agenda and place it 

5



Minturn Town Council  
March 4, 2020 

Page 3 of 8 

 

in an appropriate place on the meeting agenda so it can be discussed when that item is taken up 

by the Board. Do any Council members request removal of a Consent Agenda item? 

 

• February 19, 2020 Minutes 

• Resolution No. 08 – Series 2020 a Resolution approving the Holy Cross Energy 

Community Enhancement funds toward the improvement of sidewalks - Metteer 

 

Motion by Terry A., second by Brian E., to approve the Consent Agenda of March 4, 2020 as 

presented. Motion passed 6-0. Note: Chelsea Winters was excused absent.  

 

5. Approval of Agenda  

• Items to be Pulled or Added   

 

Move item 10 to before item 8 to accommodate the audience. 

 

Motion by Terry A., second by Eric G., to approve the Agenda of March 4, 2020 as amended. 

Motion passed 6-0. Note Chelsea W. was excused absent. 

 

• Declaration of Conflicts of Interest 

 

6. Special Presentations  

• Council Comments/Committee Reports 

 

Earle B. noted the Barstool Race this weekend: Saturday beginning at noon all the way up 

Cemetery Rd to the end (approx. one mile from Hwy 24). Apre party and awards at the Saloon.  

 

Brian E. noted the Climate Action Collaborative meeting is Monday. 

 

Terry A. attended the HighFive meeting and updated. They are looking for Board Members from 

the community. Contact JK at HighFive for details or www.Highfivemedia.org. Terry A. also 

updated on the Bike Park. They applied for a grant that was denied. However, many parties are 

involved and they will be moving forward with the park in some form. 

 

John H. noted several upcoming meetings and who will be attending. George B. noted the Holy 

Cross powerline meeting is March 12 at the USFS offices in Minturn, all are encouraged to attend 

for education and comment. There is a link on the Town website as well to accept public comment. 

All comments need to be in by April 1, 2020  

 

 

 

 

7. Public Hearing/Action Item: Ordinance No. 02 – Series 2020 (Second Reading) an 

Ordinance amending Chapter 16 of the Minturn Municipal Code – Hunn/Sawyer (30 

min) 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND/OR ACTION ITEMS 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

6

http://www.highfivemedia.org/


Minturn Town Council  
March 4, 2020 

Page 4 of 8 

 

Scot H. outlined the proposed Ordinance and how it will address the proposed changes in 

Chapter 16. The Ordinance will eliminate certain sections and modify others. Second, the 

Ordinance will address engineering standards and specifications in Appendix C. This has been 

reviewed by the Planning Commission and they voted to recommend approval by Council.  He 

noted the Ordinance had not been changed since First Reading. 

 

Scot H. noted this Ordinance is designed as a stop gap measure to allow time to better study 

the concerns and best to address them. 

 

Public Hearing Opened 

No Public Comment 

Public Hearing Closed 

 

Motion by Brian E., second by George B., to approve Ordinance No. 02 – Series 2020 (Second 

Reading) an Ordinance amending Chapter 16 of the Minturn Municipal Code as presented. 

Motion passed 6-0. Note Chelsea W. was excused absent. 

 

 

 

 

8. Discussion/Direction Item:  Water Regulations & Water System Loss – John Volk (60 

min)  

 

Michelle M. updated on the infrastructure needs and the water quality needs being addressed. 

Tonight will center on water loss, leak detection, and water quality.   

 

John V. reviewed the turbidity issues the plant experiences and how those affect our water 

quality. Two of the three filters are not covered and native grasses, bushes, and trees can access 

the water. Additionally, those two filters freeze during the winter months and cannot be cleaned 

and maintained. This could result in a serious problem if the filters fail and cannot be addressed 

until spring and the concern has been expressed by CDPHE. This spring an evaporation test 

will be conducted to ensure the filters integrity. Discussion ensued as to the quality testing and 

the various test results. John V. did state the filters are very sound and the water is very safe, 

however, it is an old system that will in the near future face concerns with meeting the 

increasing purity standards set by the state. As well, future demand will increase the demand 

placed on the filters which can only produce water up to a certain demand.  

 

George B. asked how many times the town has been out of compliance; a couple times in the 

past year or so. John V. stated once the filter is cleaned it can take up to several months for the 

filter to be able to be restored to use as they rely on microbes to purify and those microbes need 

to grow. Discussion ensued as to how the proposed new filters would work using membranes 

and the existing sand filters work.  

 

John V. stated the water tank is leaking at the seams and in a number of pinhole leaks. Repairs 

were addressed on the tank. Below the steel tank is a concrete liner. It is very difficult to 

DISCUSSION/DIRECTION ITEMS 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

7



Minturn Town Council  
March 4, 2020 

Page 5 of 8 

 

monitor leaks and integrity. He also stated a bolted steel tank contracts and expands with the 

weather. This affects the life expectancy of the tank.  

 

Discussion ensued as to how long the plant and tank can last. The issue is the growth of the 

town and how that demand will affect the ability to ask more from the existing infrastructure. 

The existing filters can produce only so much, the more we demand of them the more we need 

to clean and maintain the filters, the more they need to be cleaned the more they are out of 

service which would limit our ability to produce at full demand capacity. The longer the filters 

and system are down for maintenance due to demand the less effective the entire system will 

be to meet the demand. 

 

John V. outlined the water loss by showing statistics from 2013 forward. He noted that a 20% 

loss is based on the water produced. During the winter we are making less water so the loss 

percentage is greater than in the summer when we are producing more. The value he is most 

concentrating on each month is the Gallons Per Minute not the percentage. He will begin 

installing the water loss system in the spring when the snow is not a factor.   

 

9. Discussion/Direction Item:   100 Block Traffic Study – Hunn (60 min) 

 

Scot H. presented a traffic study the town commissioned for the 100 block of Main St in light 

of the very potential redevelopment in that area. The study covered parking, snow storage, and 

traffic flow. The study proposed several options and how those would look if instituted to 

include pros and cons. Concepts explored included land swaps for town owned streets for other 

land in the area that would make the roads flow more intuitively. Scot H. stated there are a lot 

of issues and not a lot of solutions. As the 100-block development progresses this study will 

be used since it does show options and how those options have been fleshed out.   

 

Mr. Ken Mentz, 167 Williams St., discussed his concerns and felt the parking spots laid out do 

not provide actual access in to the spaces. He also stated to utilize Williams St. with its 15ft 

ROW is not conducive to more traffic. He stated it could be beneficial if the deliveries were 

done with smaller trucks that would fit our streets better.  

 

Michelle M. updated that the citizen, Council, and Planning Commission comments will be 

take back and applied to the study and updated as needed.  

 

10. Discussion/Direction Item:   Recycle/Compost update – Metteer/Widerman (20 min) 

 

Note: This item was taken up prior to item #8. 

 

Michelle M. noted the composting membership is open and citizens can enroll on the town 

website. The Recycle dumpster and the Trash Dumpster have been switched to allow the 

recycle bin to reside in the enclosure next to the Compost dumpster. The private trash dumpster 

has been moved to the north end of the building, on Norman St. and the single stream recycling 

bin is in the dumpster enclosure at the south end of the building on Boulder St. Michelle M. 

noted the recycle bin at Town Hall is single stream. The recycle available for free at your home 

is duel stream. Ms. Jennifer Collins from Honeywagon presented and were present for 

8



Minturn Town Council  
March 4, 2020 

Page 6 of 8 

 

questions. Honeywagon has provided trash and recycling services to the Town since 2008. 

Discussion ensued as to why some recycle is single and some is duel stream; single stream 

goes is shipped to Denver; duel stream is handled at the MRPH located at the landfill.  

 

The town is looking to receive a proposal from Honeywagon for the cost and inclusions of 

curbside single stream. The direction was to increase the town dumpster (south end of the 

building) to two dumps per week up from the one dump a week. This will begin immediately.  

 

 

 

 

11. Staff Updates 

• Manager’s Report 

 

MINTURN FITNESS CENTER (MFC) 

I met with John Hale, COO, SSCV as well as Kris bowers and Jimmy Pritchard of the Minturn 

Fitness Center this week. The discussion revolved around ongoing concerns by members of the 

Minturn public and Council regarding ways to improve the public experience at the MFC. 
 

Of primary interest was the opportunity to increase MFC hours for public use. The MFC staff has 

agreed that increasing accessible hours of operation is critical to the public benefit and has created 

an action plan of items to review as we gather information toward the potential use of a key-fob 

system. 
 

A key-fob system would allow public memberships the ability to access the MFC without the need 

for the MFC to increase labor hours/costs to staff the center. Many gyms utilize this type of system 

and allow their facilities to be accessible to members when there is no staff on duty. 

 

It remains to be seen if this type of system would provide the benefit the public is looking for 

within a budget that Minturn can afford - as Minturn would be paying for the necessary upgrades 

to implement this option. 

 

THE MINTURN COMMUNITY SURVEY IS LIVE! 

For anyone without access to email, hard copies are available at the town hall offices. If you are 

needing a link to the survey (each link is specific for each survey response) please call Cindy Krieg 

at 970-827-5645 x5 or events@minturn.org. A copy of the Vail Daily survey notice has been 

included with this update. 
 

PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) is requesting the White River National 

Forest (WRNF) be added as a signatory to a National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) 

Programmatic Agreement (PA). There is a 30-day comment period on which to provide feedback 

to this request. I spoke with Mr. Thomas Fuller, Heritage Program Manager, who explained this 

addition to the PA request is to streamline paperwork for multi-year forest rehabilitation projects. 

All current required notifications to the public will remain in tack. I anticipate no comments from 

COUNCIL INFORMATION / UPDATES 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

9

mailto:events@minturn.org


Minturn Town Council  
March 4, 2020 

Page 7 of 8 

 

Minturn however if Council has specific questions, you’re encouraged to call Mr. Fuller directly. 

A copy of the PA has been included with this update for your review. 

 

WATERSMART GRANT APPLICATION 

Unfortunately, Minturn was not awarded funds for the Bureau of Reclamation’s 2020 WaterSmart 

Grant. After reviewing the award recipients, all the Colorado awards went to communities that 

were able to show a significantly higher water per acre-foot savings than Minturn, so the Bureau 

was going for the highest “bang for the buck.” This seems reasonable given the goal is to 

save/conserve water, but still difficult news none-the-less. 
 

Grant Application Comparisons (a copy of the grant award recipients has been included in this 

update for your review). 

Minturn water savings expectation: 25.6 acre-feet Grant Recipients water savings expectations: 

Aspen: 273 acre-feet 

Grand Junction: 741 acre-feet  

Greeley: 1,129 acre-feet  

Longmont: 361 acre-feet 

Thornton 1,165 acre-feet 

 

BATTLE MOUNTAIN OPEN DISCUSSIONS 

Battle Mountain / Crave Development will be looking to hold several listening sessions pertaining 

to the viability of a project at the south end of town and the vision residents and businesses have 

for that area of the community. For anyone interested in providing feedback please contact Tim 

McGuire at 970-827-4609 or email tmcguire@battlemountainresort.com. 

 

Michelle M. reminded all that the Holy Cross power line public comment period is only 30 days. 

The town is trying to get that extended but all are encouraged to comment during this comment 

period. In order to be part of the press you must comment during the comment period. Once the 

comment period ends, it is too late. Brian E. stated those individuals that submit now will be the 

ONLY individuals who will be allowed to comment during the second round as the project 

continues. Terry A. asked where the maps were and if there are additional maps based on how the 

project has matured; Michelle M. stated she has requested any new maps but none have been forth 

coming.  

 

Michelle M. updated the RFP for a Municipal Judge is in the interview stage. 

 

• Future Agenda Items 

 

 

 

 

12. Future Meeting Dates 

a) Council Meetings: 

• March 4, 2020 

• March 18, 2020 

• April 1, 2020 

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 

10

mailto:tmcguire@battlemountainresort.com


Minturn Town Council  
March 4, 2020 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 

 

13. Other Dates: 

• Bar Stool Racing – March 7, 2020 

• Candidate Forum – March 19, 2020 

 

14. Adjournment 

 

Motion by Earle B., second by Brian E., to adjourn at 9:10pm. Motion passed 6-0.  Note Chelsea 

W. was excused absent. 

 

__________________________________ 

John Widerman, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Jay Brunvand, Town Clerk 

 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



 

 

 
PO Box 309   •   302 Pine St   •   Minturn, CO 81645   •   www.minturn.org   •   info@minturn.org   •   970-827-5645 

 
To:  Mayor and Town Council 
From:  Michelle Metteer  
Date:   March 4, 2020 
Agenda Item: Ordinance 3–Series 2020 An Ordinance amending sections of the Mountaintop Agreement 

 
REQUEST:  
Council to consider amending the Mountaintop Agreement to designate the primary road along the 
mountaintop area as private.  
 
INTRODUCTION:  
The Mountaintop portion of the Battle Mountain property was zoned in 2017 and included the 
Mountaintop Agreement outlining understandings of development within the mountaintop area. The 
main road in and out of the mountaintop was originally designated as a public road with pull-off access 
to an overlook area.  
 
ANALYSIS:  
The road accessing the mountaintop area is long with a narrow and steep ascent/descent. Engineering 
of the road for public access is prohibitive to development costs and with the anticipated development 
project of approximately 22 private lots and no ski resort, public access is unnecessary. 
 
With the road becoming private, the Mountaintop HOA will be responsible for all plowing and 
maintenance,  the cost for Eagle County Sheriff Services becomes “negligible” -as determined by Sheriff 
Van Beek and any costs pertaining to Eagle River Fire Protection District are covered in the building fees 
when a new permit is pulled.  
 
Although there is minimal to no impact to the town, in order to keep with the spirit of the original 2008 
Annexation Agreement, a clause in the Amendment outlines the ability for Minturn residents to take 
part should a commercially accessible ski lift be installed.  
 
COMMUNITY INPUT: 
Ongoing 
 
BUDGET / STAFF IMPACT: 
$0 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
The ability to bring in funds through real estate transfer taxes, construction use taxes, property taxes 
and the like is an extremely valuable option for Minturn for a small estimated impact of 22 lots spread 
out of 3000+ acres.  

 
ADVANCE DECISIONS/PROJECTS/INITIATIVES THAT EXPAND FUTURE OPPORTUNITY AND 

VIABILITY FOR MINTURN 
 
 

38



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
PO Box 309   •   302 Pine St   •   Minturn, CO 81645   •   www.minturn.org   •   info@minturn.org   •   970-827-5645 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION OR PROPOSED MOTION:  

• Approve Ordinance 3 Series 2020 An Ordinance amending sections of the Mountaintop 
Agreement 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   

• Ordinance 3 – Series 2020 

39



TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 03 – SERIES 2020

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF 

THE TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO TO SIGN 

THE APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO 

MOUNTAIN CONCEPT AGREEMENT. 

WHEREAS, the Town of Minturn (“Town”) is a Colorado home rule municipality 

organized pursuant to Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and with the authority of the Town 

of Minturn Home Rule Charter for which the Minturn Town Council (“Town Council”) is 

authorized to act; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has authority pursuant to the Home Rule Charter and 

C.R.S. § 31-16-101, et seq. to adopt and enforce all ordinances; and

WHEREAS, , by Ordinances 1-9, Series 2008, the Town of Minturn (" Town") annexed 

into the Town approximately 4, 340 acres of land commonly known as Battle Mountain (“Battle 

Property”) which includes the “Mountaintop Area” which is comprised of collectively, the Willow 

Creek Character Area, the Rock Creels Character Area and the Holy Cross Character Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Town approved Ordinance 10, Series 2008, an Ordinance authorizing the 

Mayor of the Town of Minturn, Colorado, to sign an annexation agreement and vested property 

rights development agreement, which agreement is recorded in the public records of Eagle County 

at Reception No. 200806742 (“Original Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Town approved Ordinance 2, Series 2017, an Ordinance authorizing the 

mayor of the Town of Minturn, Colorado, to sign the development agreement implementing the 

mountain concept alternative within the Mountaintop area of the Battle Mountain Property, which 

agreement is recorded in the public records of Eagle County at Reception No. 201710379 

(“Mountain Concept Agreement”), which amended the Original Agreement to implement the 

Mountain Concept Alternative; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and the Owner having agreed upon acceptable terms and conditions 

of an amendment to the Mountain Concept Agreement relating to the Red Cliff Overlook, and 

Commercial and Private Ski Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, section 5.3 of the Mountain Concept Agreement requires that any 

amendment thereto be subject to the same procedures for public notice and public hearing as 

required for the approval of the Mountain Concept Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, WHEREAS, the Town is authorized by the Local Government Land Use 

Control Enabling Act of 1974, C. R.S. § 29-20- 101 et seq. and the Town Charter to plan for and 

regulate the use of land within the Town’s jurisdiction and to enter into agreements such as the 

First Amendment to the Mountain Concept Agreement; and 

40



Ord. No. _, Series 2020 

First Amendment to Mountain Concept Agreement 

Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has held public hearings to receive public input on the 

First Amendment to the Mountain Concept Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF MINTURN, COLORADO, THAT: 

SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full. 

SECTION 2. The Town Council approves the Mountain Concept Agreement. 

SECTION 3. The Mayor is authorized to sign the First Amendment to Mountain Concept 

Agreement, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall not take effect until the First Amendment to Mountain 

Concept Agreement is signed by the representatives of all necessary parties thereto. 

SECTION 5. If any part, section, sub-section, clause or phrase in this Ordinance is for any 

reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 

this Ordinance. 

SECTION 6. The Town Council hereby finds and determines that this Ordinance and the 

First Amendment to Mountain Concept Agreement is necessary and proper for the health, safety 

and welfare of the Town of Minturn. 

INTRODUCED, READ BY TITLE, APPROVED ON THE FIRST READING AND 

ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY AND POSTED IN FULL ON THE OFFICIAL 

TOWN WEBSITE THE 18th DAY OF MARCH 2020.  A PUBLIC HEARING ON THIS 

ORDINANCE SHALL BE HELD AT THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN 

COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO ON THE 1ST DAY OF APRIL 

2020 AT 6:30 p.m. AT THE MINTURN TOWN HALL 302 PINE STREET, MINTURN 

COLORADO 81645. 

TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO 

John Widerman IV, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

41



Ord. No. _, Series 2020 

First Amendment to Mountain Concept Agreement 

Page 3 of 3 

By: 

Jay Brunvand, Town Clerk 

THE TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO, ORDAINS THIS ORDINANCE 

ENACTED ON SECOND READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY 

AND POSTED IN FULL ON THE OFFICIAL TOWN WEB SITE THIS 1st  DAY OF 

APRIL 2020. 

TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO 

John Widerman IV, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By:  

Jay Brunvand, Town Clerk 

42



 

 1 
1847057.4 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MOUNTAIN CONCEPT AGREEMENT 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO MOUNTAIN CONCEPT AGREEMENT (“First 
Amendment”) is made and entered into as of _________________ 2020 (“Execution Date”), by 
and among BATTLE ONE DEVELOPER, LLLP, a Georgia limited liability limited partnership, 
f/k/a Gin-LA Battle One, Ltd., LLP ( together with its successors and assigns, “Battle One”), and 
the TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO, a home rule municipal corporation (together with its 
successors and assigns, the “Town”). 

RECITALS 

This First Amendment is made with reference to the following facts: 

A. Pursuant to Ordinance No. 2-Series 2017, Town Council approved that certain 
Development Agreement Implementing the Mountain Concept Alternative Within the 
Mountaintop Area of the Battle Mountain Property (as defined therein, the “Mountain Concept 
Agreement”). 

B. Except as expressly provided otherwise in this First Amendment, capitalized terms 
used in this First Amendment have the meanings assigned to such terms in Exhibit E of the 
Mountain Concept Agreement. 

C. The Town and Battle One (individually, a “Party” and, collectively, the “Parties”) 
executed the Mountain Concept Agreement as of March 15, 2017, and caused the Mountain 
Concept Agreement to be Recorded on June 1, 2017, at Reception No. 201710379, as an 
encumbrance burdening and benefiting the Mountaintop Area, which Mountaintop Area is legally 
described and graphically depicted in Exhibit A of the Mountain Concept Agreement and in 
Exhibit A of this First Amendment. 

D. The Parties desire, in accordance with Section 5.3 of the Mountain Concept 
Agreement, to amend certain provisions of the Mountain Concept Agreement to better align with 
changed conditions subsequent to execution of the Mountain Concept Agreement and their mutual 
interests and intent in addressing such matters. 

E. Pursuant to clause (i) of Section 5.3a of the Mountain Concept Agreement, 
Battle One and the Town are the only Parties whose consent is required to execute and enter into 
this First Amendment. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements of the 
Parties contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are incorporated into and 
made substantive provisions of this First Amendment. 



 

 2 
1847057.4 

2. Amendments.  From and after the Effective Date, the Mountain Concept Agreement 
is amended as follows: 

(a) Section 2.2f.ii.  Section 2.2f.ii, regarding the Red Cliff Overlook, is deleted 
in its entirety. 

(b) Section 2.2f.iv.  The last sentence of Section 2.2f.iv is deleted in its entirety 
(i.e., The Town will have no obligation to maintain the roadway to the Red Cliff Overlook 
regardless of whether such road is located in a public access easement or whether any 
public recreation use occurs on or across such roadway.). 

(c) Section 2.2h.  A new Section 2.2h. is inserted to read in its entirety as 
follows: 

h. Commercial Ski Facilities; Private Ski Facilities.  In connection with the 
processing and approval of any Development Application that proposes to establish Commercial 
Ski Facilities or Private Ski Facilities within the Mountaintop Area, the Town, whether acting 
through Town Council or otherwise: 

i. may condition its approval of a Development Application that 
proposes to establish Commercial Ski Facilities on Town residents being permitted to 
access and utilize such Commercial Ski Facilities on the same terms and conditions, 
including payment of the specific fees or charges therefor at the same rate, as apply to other 
non-Landowner guests and/or members of the general public who utilize such Commercial 
Ski Facilities; and 

ii. may not condition its approval of a Development Application that 
proposes to establish Private Ski Facilities on Town residents having, and the Town may 
not deny such Development Application on the basis that Town residents are not permitted, 
access to and utilization of such private facilities. 

(d) Exhibit C.  The form of Exhibit C attached to the Mountain Concept 
Agreement is deleted and replaced with the amended form of Exhibit C that is attached to 
this First Amendment, which amended form of Exhibit C is modified only by deletion of 
any reference to or depiction of the “Red Cliff Overlook public access area.” 

(e) Exhibit E.  Exhibit E attached to the Mountain Concept Agreement is 
amended by the insertion, in the appropriate alphabetical locations at pages Exhibit E-1 
and Exhibit E-4, of the following defined term: 

Commercial Ski Facilities means, as distinguished from Private Ski Facilities, the following ski 
facilities located within the Mountaintop Area, if any, for which non-Landowner guests, invitees 
and/or members of the general public must pay a unique and specific fee or charge to access and 
utilize:  (i) Nordic and cross-country ski trails and related huts, structures and infrastructure; 
(ii) Alpine ski trails and related lifts, pulls, motorized uphill transit, structures and infrastructure; 
and (iii) lifts or aerial tramways that connect and enable access to the Vail Ski Resort. 



 

 3 
1847057.4 

Private Ski Facilities means, as distinguished from Commercial Ski Facilities, the following ski 
facilities located within the Mountaintop Area, if any, which are restricted to the sole and exclusive 
use of Landowners and their social guests and invitees (i.e., guests who, while they may pay to 
rent, lease or occupy accommodations, are not required to pay an additional separate and unique 
fee or charge specifically to use such private ski and recreational facilities):  (i) Nordic and 
cross-country ski trails and related huts, structures and infrastructure; and (ii) Alpine ski trails and 
related lifts, pulls, motorized uphill transit, structures and infrastructure. 

3. Effect of Amendment.  Except as expressly modified by this First Amendment, the 
Mountain Concept Agreement is unmodified, is hereby ratified and affirmed, and will remain in 
full force and effect in accordance with its terms.  If there is any inconsistency between the terms 
of this First Amendment and the terms of the Mountain Concept Agreement, the provisions of this 
First Amendment will govern and control. 

4. Governing Law.  This First Amendment will be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado. 

5. Effectiveness and Recording.  Pursuant to Section 5.3b of the Mountain Concept 
Agreement, this First Amendment will be legally effective and binding upon the later to occur of 
(i) execution by the Parties, or (ii) the effective date of the ordinance by which Town Council 
approves this First Amendment.  Promptly after this First Amendment becomes effective, the 
Parties will cause it to be Recorded.  Upon Recording, this First amendment will be legally 
effective and will be binding on the Mountaintop Area, and on all Landowners and other Parties.  
As between the Town and Battle One, the validity or enforceability of this First Amendment will 
not be affected by and delay in or failure to Record this First Amendment. 

6. Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, 
each of which will be deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts taken together will 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

[Signature Pages and Exhibits Follow This Page] 

 



 

Town’s Signature Page to First Amendment 
 4 
1847057.4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this First Amendment to be duly 
executed as of the Effective Date. 

TOWN: 

TOWN OF MINTURN 
a home rule municipal corporation 
of the State of Colorado 

By:   
Name: John Widerman, IV 
Title: Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:    By:   
Title: Town Clerk Title: Town Attorney 



 

Battle One’s Signature Page to First Amendment 
 5 
1847057.4 

BATTLE ONE: 

Battle One Developer, LLLP, 
a Georgia limited liability limited partnership 

By: Bassel Battle Investment, Corp., 
a Colorado corporation, its General Partner 

By:   
Name: Lorne Bassel 
Title: President 

 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 ) ss 
County of ______________ ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ______________, 
2020, by Lorne Bassel, President of Bassel Battle Investment, Corp., a Colorado corporation, as 
General Partner of Battle One Developer, LLLP, a Georgia limited liability limited partnership. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

My commission expires: _______________ 

  
Notary Public  

 



 

 Exhibit A-1 
1378790.12  

1847057.4 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description and Graphic Depiction of Mountaintop Area 

(Not modified by this First Amendment) 

Tract 9-A of Battle Mountain Annexation Parcel No. 9, being legally described and graphically 
depicted as follows: 

 
  



 

 A-2 
1378790.12  

1847057.4 

 
  



 

 A-3 
1378790.12  

1847057.4 

 
  



 

 A-4 
1378790.12  

1847057.4 

 
  



 

 A-5 
1378790.12  

1847057.4 

 
  



 

 A-6 
1378790.12  

1847057.4 

 
  



 

 A-7 
1378790.12  

1847057.4 

 



 

 Exhibit A- 1 
(unmodified) 

1847057.4 

Graphic Depiction of Mountaintop Area 
(comprised of Tract 9-A Only) 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 Amended Form of Exhibit C-1 
1847057.4 

EXHIBIT C 
Map Depicting Conceptual Public Access Easement Locations 

(Amended Form) 

 



  
A

m
ended F

orm
 of E

xhibit C
-2 

1847057.4 

 



  
A

m
ended F

orm
 of E

xhibit C
-3 

1847057.4 

 



Section 2.2    Mountain Concept.   If Battle One or any successor Landowner(s) elect(s) 

to pursue development pursuant to the  Mountain  Concept  in  the  manner  described  in  Section 

2.1c.i and Section 2.1e, and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in Section 4.2b: 
 

a. Subdivision. The Mountaintop Subdivision Regulations and related 

components of the Mountain Concept Code Provisions will govern and control with respect to 

the creation of Estate Lots pursuant to the Estate Lot Process and the creation of Ranch Lots 

pursuant to the Ranch Lot Process. 
 

b. Zoning. The Mountaintop Zoning Regulations and related components of 

the Mountain Concept Code Provisions will govern and control zoning and development of 

Estate Lots and/or Ranch Lots. 
 

c. Water and Wastewater. The Mountaintop Utilities Regulations and 

related components of the Mountain Concept Code Provisions will govern and control with 

respect to the provision of water and wastewater services for development of Estate Lots and/or 

Ranch Lots. If any disputes arises with respect to  the  Town’s  denial  of  approval  pursuant  to  

Section 13-7-45 of the Mountain Concept Code Provisions, such dispute may be submitted for 

resolution pursuant to Section 4.10. 
 

d. Traffic and Roads. The Mountaintop Road Standards and related 

components of the Mountain Concept Code Provisions will govern and control with respect to 

the provision of roads, and maintenance thereof, for development of Estate Lots and/or Ranch 

Lots. 
 

e. Building;  Impact  Fees.  The  International  Codes  (as  defined   in 

Section 18-1-10 of the Town Code, and inclusive of such Town-specific amendments of general 

applicability thereto as Town Council may adopt from time to time), the Mountaintop Building 

Code Regulations, and related components of the Mountain Concept Code Provisions  will 

govern and control with respect to issuance of building permits and certificates of occupancy 

for, and imposition of impact fees relating to, development of Estate Lots and/or Ranch Lots. 
 

f. Public Access and Recreational Easements. The Original Agreement 

contemplates certain public access to the portion of the Battle Property that comprises the 

Mountaintop Area and regarding Shrine Pass Road (located within adjacent non-annexed 

property). Due to the differences between development under the Original  Development  

Concept and development under the Mountain Concept, easements for public access to and 

recreational purposes within the Mountaintop Area pursuant to the Mountain Concept will be 

Dedicated to the Town as set forth in this Section 2.2f. 

 

i. Peregrine Falcon and Eagle River Trails. Within sixty (60) days 

after the Effective Date, the Town will prepare for Battle One’s review and approval draft legal 

descriptions and draft forms of the non-vehicular public access and recreational easements 

described in and consistent with the criteria set forth in this Section 2.2f.i. Within ninety (90) 

days after the Effective Date, Battle One and the Town will finalize, execute and Record the 

following easements: 
 

43



(1) in the approximate area depicted on Exhibit C as  

“Peregrine Falcon public access area,” a non-vehicular public access and recreational 

easement, generally along the existing Xcel pipeline easement, for pedestrian/hiking 

access along a trail to the base of the cliffs below the peregrine falcon nesting area (but 

prohibiting access to within not less than ¼ mile of the peregrine falcon nesting area 

during the nesting period (roughly March15 through August 1)); and 
 

(2) a non-vehicular recreational public access easement along 

the Eagle River (such area being located in small portion of the northwestern part of the 

Mountaintop Area in the vicinity of the Peregrine Falcon Nesting Area buffer as 

designated on Exhibit C) that will (A) establish an easement area that is parallel to and 

on each side of the Eagle River for that portion of such Ranch Lot Plat or Estate Lot Plat 

that is (I) twenty (20) feet (or such lesser distance as corresponds to the applicable 

boundary of the Mountaintop Area) from the ordinary high water mark (as determined 

in accordance with the definition thereof set forth in the Floodplain Stormwater and 

Criteria Manual published by the Colorado Water Conservation Board in effect as the 

date on which the river access easement is executed), and (II) parallel to and on each side 

of the Eagle River; and (B) be limited in scope to non-motorized public recreational use 

for picnicking, walking, hiking, fishing, kayaking, rafting, canoeing, and tubing. 
 

ii. Red Cliff Overlook. Battle One or such successor Landowner who 

seeks approval for a Ranch Lot Plat that includes any portion of the “Red Cliff Overlook public 

access area” approximately depicted on Exhibit C will Dedicate to the Town a vehicular and 

non-vehicular recreational access easement between Highway 24 and generally terminating at a 

viewing area overlooking the southerly view toward the Town of Red Cliff. Said easement will 

encumber the full width of the roadway (to be constructed pursuant to the Mountaintop Road 

Standards) together with sufficient area at the Red Cliff Overlook for a picnic/viewing and 

recreational use area, parking for at least six (6) vehicles and a vehicle turn around area. 
 

iii. Method  of  Dedication.  The  easements  described  in  this  

Section 2.2f will not be Dedicated by plat, but will be Dedicated and accepted by Recording of 

separate easement documents. The exact locations of the designated easement areas, and the 

limitations and other terms applicable thereto, will be described in such public access and 

recreational easements. The areas designated on Exhibit C as “public access,” “river access” or 

similarly described areas are approximate and are not surveyed locations. 
 

iv. General Terms of Easements. The Parties intend that each such 

easement   document   will   be   made   expressly   subject   to   and   within   the   scope   

of 

C.R.S. §§ 33-41-103 and 13-21-115, being Dedicated to the Town for recreational purposes and 

related public access.  In accordance with the exception from the definition of “subdivision” in 

 

 

Section 17-2-10 of the Town Code, fee ownership of the easement areas may subsequently be 

conveyed by metes and bounds legal description (to be coincident with the legal descriptions of 

the easement areas) to a District or to an Association, such conveyances will not be construed to 

constitute a “subdivision” within the meaning of the Town Code, and may be accomplished 

44



without the requirement of being platted under the Town’s subdivision regulations: provided, 

however, the instrument of conveyance must, inter alia, expressly state (A) the conveyance is 

for the purpose of creating permanent open space; (B) the property is subject to a use restriction 

for only public access, permanent open space, recreational purposes and utilities; and (C) the 

conveyance is expressly subject to the encumbrance of the applicable easement document and 

dominant estate created thereunder in accordance with the terms and conditions of such 

easement document. The fee owner, from time to time, of property subject to such easements 

will have no obligation to maintain the easement areas or to maintain trails or improvements, if 

any, located within the easement areas. The Town will have no obligation to maintain the 

roadway to the Red Cliff Overlook regardless of whether such road is located in a public access 

easement or whether any public recreation use occurs on or across such roadway. 
 

Shrine Pass Road. Shrine Pass Road passes through certain property that Battle One owns and 

which is located in unincorporated Eagle County and generally adjacent to the Mountaintop 

Area. Concurrently with complying with their respective obligations pursuant  to Section 2.2f.i 

and within the timeframes set forth therein, the Town and Battle One will draft, agree upon, 

execute and cause to be Recorded as an encumbrance on the applicable portion of such un-

annexed adjacent property a covenant which runs with title to such land that will have the effect 

of imposing a servitude for the purpose of assuring that neither Battle One nor any subsequent 

owner of such property will cause Shrine Pass Road to be closed to the public  through such 

property, and that any realignment or other changes to Shrine Pass Road must be made in 

accordance with applicable U.S. Forest Service rules, regulations and policies. The Signatories 

expressly intend that the obligations under such covenant will be enforceable by the Town, in 

accordance with its terms, against the applicable portion of the adjacent, un-annexed property, 

but further expressly intend that no subsequent Landowner of any portion of the Mountaintop 

Area will have (or deemed to have) any obligation under this Section 2.2g and that this Section 

2.2g will not be construed to encumber any portion of the Mountaintop Area (such obligation 

being expressly a personal contractual obligation of Battle One and any successor owner(s) of 

the adjacent, non-annexed property). 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



 
www.mountainlawfirm.com 

 
Glenwood Springs – Main Office       
201 14th Street, Suite 200 
P. O. Drawer 2030 
Glenwood Springs, CO 81602 

Aspen 

323 W. Main Street 

Suite 301 

Aspen, CO 81611 

Montrose 

1544 Oxbow Drive 

Suite 224 

Montrose, CO 81402 

Office: 970.945.2261 

Fax:     970.945.7336 

*Direct Mail to Glenwood Springs 

 

 

 DATE: March 13, 2020 

 TO: Minturn Mayor and Council 

 FROM: Karp Neu Hanlon, P.C. 

 RE: Emergency COVID-19 Resolutions 

 
 

 Attached please find two resolutions, which are intended to put the Town in the best position 

possible to address COVID-19 on an ongoing basis.   

 

The Emergency Declaration resolution grants the Town Manager the authority to declare a 

local disaster emergency related to the COVID-19 outbreak.  While the manager has this authority, it 

is limited to seven days without ratification.  To ensure continuity of operations, it is advisable to 

grant the Town Manager this authority at this time.  The declaration of a local disaster emergency is 

an administrative tool to enable the receipt and spending of certain available funds.  The resolution 

also lifts the cap on the Town Manager’s spending authority to ensure that emergency response 

operations can be conducts.  Such expenditures will require later Council ratification. 

 

The Emergency Electronic Participation Policy supplements the Municipal Code’s existing 

policies regarding electronic participation.  It appears likely that Town business will need to be 

conducted telephone and video conference for the foreseeable future.  As such, it is advisable to adopt 

policies to permit a quorum to meet via such methods to limit in-person contacts.  Furthermore, this 

policy makes accommodations for quasi-judicial proceedings that require presentation of materials 

and opportunities for public comment.  This policy will only be invoked by the Town Manager’s 

declaration of a local disaster emergency or the Governor’s state of emergency, and does not modify 

the existing code section 2-2-50.  

 

53

http://www.mountainlawfirm.com/


54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



 

 

 
PO Box 309   •   302 Pine St   •   Minturn, CO 81645   •   www.minturn.org   •   info@minturn.org   •   970-827-5645 

 
To:  Mayor and Town Council 
From:  Michelle Metteer  
Date:   March 4, 2020 
Agenda Item: Ordinance 05–Series 2020 An Ordinance of the Town of Minturn enacting a moratorium on 

the allocation of water taps for new build construction projects requiring more than three 
Single Family Equivalents (SFE) 

 
REQUEST:  
Council to consider the adoption of Ordinance 05 - Series 2020 An Ordinance of the Town of Minturn 
enacting a moratorium on the allocation of water taps for new build construction projects requiring more 
than three Single Family Equivalents (SFE) 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
Minturn has conducted public discussions covering all aspects of the water system for the last several 
years (and longer). In those discussions, the limitations of Cross Creek’s volumetric supply have been at 
the forefront and the creek is nearing its capacity. The Water Capital Improvement Plan cites the ability 
for Cross Creek to serve approximately 70 additional SFEs.  Until such time that the Town has 
implemented a secondary water source and water treatment infrastructure, new building of larger 
construction projects requiring new taps is limited.  
 
ANALYSIS:  
An application for a preliminary planned unit development has been submitted to Minturn Town Hall. 
This application has gone through the pre-application meeting, two conceptual reviews at Planning 
Commission and a conceptual review with the Town Council. Planning Commission unanimously 
recommended the applicant proceed to the preliminary plan process. 
 
Minturn has been aware that the last remaining taps and the Town’s ability to serve from the current 
single water source is limited. The time has arrived where the last remaining taps are being requested 
through application. It is important to distinguish, that the approximately 70 SFE’s remaining is data 
taken from the worst-case scenario drought in the winter months. What this means is that there is an 
amount of “wiggle-room” for Minturn to allocate additional taps using extreme conservation.  
 
This Ordinance would allow builders and construction projects to apply for new builds up to three taps. 
The Town would not be able to accept any applications for projects exceeding three new taps.  
 
COMMUNITY INPUT: 
Imp 
 
BUDGET / STAFF IMPACT: 
$0 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
ADVANCE DECISIONS/PROJECTS/INITIATIVES THAT EXPAND FUTURE OPPORTUNITY AND 

VIABILITY FOR MINTURN 

62



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
PO Box 309   •   302 Pine St   •   Minturn, CO 81645   •   www.minturn.org   •   info@minturn.org   •   970-827-5645 

 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION OR PROPOSED MOTION:  

• Approve Ordinance 05–Series 2020 An Ordinance of the Town of Minturn enacting a 
moratorium on the allocation of water taps for new build construction projects requiring more 
than three Single Family Equivalents (SFE) 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   

• Ordinance 05–Series 2020 An Ordinance of the Town of Minturn enacting a moratorium on the 
allocation of water taps for new build construction projects requiring more than three Single 
Family Equivalents (SFE) 

63



1 

 

TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 05 - SERIES 2020 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MINTURN, 

COLORADO ENACTING A MORATORIUM ON THE 

ALLOCATION OF WATER TAPS FOR NEW BUILD 

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS REQUIRING MORE 

THAN THREE SINGLE FAMILY EQUIVALENT UNITS. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Minturn (“Town”) is a legal and political subdivision of the 

State of Colorado for which the Minturn Town Council (“Town Council”) is authorized to act; and 

 

WHEREAS, new construction projects and projects increasing the footprint or the area of 

an existing structure proposed to be undertaken within the Town are subject to a water service 

application review pursuant to Section 13-2-10 of the Minturn Municipal Code (“Code”) to ensure 

that the proposed structures and additions are constructed in compliance with the Code, including 

the Town's Municipal Utilities, and other regulations adopted by the Town; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council approved Resolution 40 – Series 2019 A Resolution to 

approve a Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for the Minturn Water Plant and system within the 

Town of Minturn; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2019 Water System CIP Table 3 Development Summary acknowledges 

approximately 70 remaining water taps, or Single Family Equivalent (“SFE”) units for use within 

the Town of Minturn with the current water infrastructure and single water source utilized; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2019 Water System CIP Table 3 Development Summary acknowledges 

the approximately 70 remaining taps are in addition to the already allocated 120 remaining taps to 

be designated for the Eagle County School District Maloit Park area as outlined in Ordinances 1-

4, Series 2011; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution 40 – Series 2019, Section 1 acknowledges the adoption of 

“Option 2” by the Minturn Town Council supporting the growth scenario of an additional 330 

SFEs; and 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 11 – Series 2019 An Ordinance adopting the fee schedule for 

fiscal year 2020, adopted the water utilities fee schedule based on the Option 2 growth scenario 

water rate modeling conducted by Ehlers Municipal Financial; and 

 

WHEREAS, Minturn Crossing LLC (the “Applicant”) conducted pre-application 

meetings for the Minturn Crossing Conceptual Development Plan for Planned Unit Development 

with the Town on September 4, 2019 and October 24, 2019; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Applicant submitted a Conceptual Development Plan for PUD 

application (the “Concept Plan”) to the Town on November 18, 2019; and 

 

64



2 

 

WHEREAS, the Applicant participated in required public conceptual plan review 

meetings during regularly scheduled Minturn Planning Commission meetings on the following 

dates: December 11, 2019 and January 8, 2020 and received approval; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Applicant participated in a voluntary public conceptual plan review 

meeting at a regularly scheduled Minturn Town Council meeting held on December 18, 2019 and 

received conceptual level support; and 

 

WHEREAS, at its regularly scheduled meeting of January 8, 2020, the Minturn Planning 

Commission voted unanimously to recommend to the Town of Minturn Planning Director that the 

Conceptual Plan met the standards for a Conceptual Development Plan for PUD pursuant to the 

Code, and that the Applicant should proceed to Preliminary Plan for PUD application; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town received an application (the “Application”) for the Minturn 

Crossing Preliminary Plan for PUD (the “PUD”) on March 13, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Code requires the Town to determine completeness of the Application 

within ten (10) business days following receipt of a land use application; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Application is for a residential PUD in general conformance with the 

Concept Plan and proposes up to 162 SFEs or a total buildout of 184 single-family, duplex, and 

multi-family dwelling units to be constructed in multiple phases, with the first phase to consist of 

a maximum of 70 dwelling units or SFEs; and 

 

WHEREAS, based upon water utility capacity to serve, the water necessary to serve the 

first phase of the PUD is currently available; and 

 

WHEREAS, municipalities have the authority to enact moratoria in order to preserve the 

status quo and promote orderly development so long as it is not contrary to a statewide regulatory 
scheme or policy; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council hereby finds and determines that a moratorium on the 

issuance of water taps for new projects requiring more than 3 SFEs after April 8, 2020 preserves 

the status quo in such a manner as to promote orderly development within the Town and is not contrary to 

any statewide regulatory schemes or policies, and furthermore provides sufficient assurance as to the 

availability of water taps for a pending application while protecting the Town’s ability to 

adequately serve existing utility customers, thereby protecting the Town’s water infrastructure and 

water source. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO: 

 

SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full. 

 

SECTION 2. A moratorium commencing on April 8, 2020 is hereby imposed on the 

acceptance and processing by the Town of land use development applications submitted pursuant 

65



3 

 

to Minturn Municipal Code Chapter 16 for new construction projects within the Town’s water 

service area that will require more than three (3) new Single Family Equivalents, as defined in 

Minturn Municipal Code Chapter 13, Article 1. 

 

SECTION 3. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase, or provision of this ordinance, or 

the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall to any extent be held by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unconstitutional, the remaining sections, subsections, 

clauses, phrases and provisions of this ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstance, shall remain in full force and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated. 

 
INTRODUCED, READ BY TITLE, APPROVED ON THE FIRST READING AND ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY AND POSTED IN FULL ON THE OFFICIAL TOWN WEBSITE 

THE 18th DAY OF MARCH 2020.  A PUBLIC HEARING ON THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE 

HELD AT THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

MINTURN, COLORADO ON THE 1ST DAY OF APRIL 2020 AT 6:30 p.m. AT THE MINTURN 

TOWN HALL 302 PINE STREET, MINTURN COLORADO 81645. 

 

TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO 

 

 

  

John Widerman IV, Mayor 

  

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:    

 Jay Brunvand, Town Clerk 

 

THE TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO, ORDAINS THIS ORDINANCE ENACTED ON 

SECOND READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY AND POSTED IN FULL 

ON THE OFFICIAL TOWN WEB SITE THIS 1ST DAY OF ______________ 2020. 

 

 

 

TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO 

 

 

  

John Widerman IV, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:   

Jay Brunvand, Town Clerk 

 

66



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Below reflects proposed topics to be scheduled at future Town Council meetings and is 
informational only. Dates and topics are subject to change. 

 

REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 

March 18, 2020 

Ordinance No. 03 - Series 2020 (First Reading) an Ordinance amending sections of the 

Minturn Municipal Code pertaining to the “Mountaintop area” - RJP 

Ordinance No. 04 - Series 2020 (First Reading) An Ordinance Amending Chapter 8 of the 

Minturn Municipal Code to Adopt the 2020 Model Traffic Code for Colorado with Local 

Amendments 

Resolution 11- Series 2020 A Resolution appointing a municipal judge 

 

April 1, 2020 

Special Presentation – Minturn 2020 Community Survey Results – Intercept Insights/Metteer 

Ordinance No. 05 – Series 2020 (Second Reading) An Ordinance of the Town of Minturn 

enacting a moratorium on the allocation of water taps for new build construction projects 

requiring more than three single family equivalents (SFEs) 

Ordinance No. 03 - Series 2020 (First Reading) an Ordinance amending sections of the 

Minturn Municipal Code pertaining to the “Mountaintop area” - RJP 

Ordinance No. 04 - Series 2020 (First Reading) An Ordinance Amending Chapter 8 of the 

Minturn Municipal Code to Adopt the 2020 Model Traffic Code for Colorado with Local 

Amendments 

 

April 15, 2020 

Swearing in of new Council members and mayor - Brunvand 

Work Session – Minturn Fitness Center Discussion 

Discussion/Direction – Leash Law review – Eagle County Animal Control 

Discussion/Direction – Short Term Rental Regulations Review - Metteer 

Discussion/Direction – General Fund Capital Improvement Plan Public Comment & Feedback 

May 6, 2020 

 

 

 

July 1, 2020 

 

Public Hearing/Action Item: Ordinance 08 – Series 2019 (Second Reading) An Ordinance 

approving Disconnection of Real Property from the Town of Minturn – Battle Mountain Bolts 

Lake Property – Sawyer 

 

 

Jay Brunvand 
Clerk/Treasurer 

301 Pine St #309  302 Pine St 
Minturn, CO 81645 

970-827-5645 x1 
treasurer@minturn.org 

www.minturn.org  

Town Council 
Mayor – John Widerman 

Mayor Pro Tem – Earle Bidez 
Council Members: 
 Terry Armistead 
George Brodin 
Brian Eggleton 
Eric Gotthelf 

Chelsea Winters 
 

 

67

mailto:treasurer@minturn.org
http://www.minturn.org/

	03-18-2020 Agenda1
	03-04-2020 Minutes
	Res 09-2020 ECO Transit support
	Res 10-2020 Leak Detection System
	Res 11-2020 Court Judge
	Mountaintop cover memo
	20200313 Ordinance No.03 - Mountaintop
	Sec 2.2 Mountaintop
	Ord 04-2020 MTC
	Cover Memo COVID-19 Resolutions
	Res 12-2020 Electronic Participation of Meetings
	Res 13-2020 Declaration of Emergency
	Ord 5 Moratorium Cover Memo
	20200313 Ord 5 - 2020 Water Tap Moratorium_CLEAN (003)
	Future Meeting Topics

